
 

 
 

 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR HOUSING, INFRASTRUCTURE AND 

TRANSPORT  
 

22nd October 2025 at 2.00pm 
 
Present 
 
Councillor S Swinburn (in the Chair) 
 
Officers in Attendance: 
 

• Eve Richardson Smith (Head of Law and Governance) 
• Sophie Pickerden (Committee Support Officer) 
• Paul Evans (Assistant Director – Infrastructure) 
• Anthony Snell (Transport and Traffic Manager) 
• Martin Lear (Principal Transport Officer) 
• Richard Dowson (Head of Project Management) 
• Jonathan Ford (Senior Transport Officer) 

 
Others in Attendance: 
 

• Councillor Morland (Croft Baker Ward Councillor) 
• Councillor K Swinburn (Immingham Ward Councillor) 

 
There was two members of the public and no member of the press in attendance at the 
meeting.  
 

PH.HIT.20 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

There were no apologies for absence for this meeting. 
 

PH.HIT.21 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

There were no declarations of interest from the Portfolio Holder in respect 
of any items on the agenda for this meeting. 



 
PH.HIT.22 MINUTES 
 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Portfolio Holder for Housing, 
Infrastructure and Transport meeting on 24th September 2025 be agreed 
as a correct record. 

 
PH.HIT.23 PETITION – STOP PLANNED CHANGE IN PARKING 

REGULATIONS IN MILL ROAD AND SURROUNDING 
STREETS IN CLEETHORPES  

  The Portfolio Holder received a petition to stop the planned change in 
parking regulations in Mill Road and surrounding streets in 
Cleethorpes.  

 Ms Burgess spoke as the lead petitioner and Owner of the Dolly Tub 
Laundrette. Ms Burgess stated that her main objection was that there 
would be no stopping at all if the planned change went ahead. She 
explained that she was present on behalf of three other businesses 
and said that if staff or customers weren’t able to stop, it would cause 
a huge amount of problems. She explained that they do their own 
collections and deliveries at the Dolly Tub Laundrette and this could 
sometimes mean forty bags of laundry to load and unload.  She said 
that some of her clients were disabled and if cars weren’t able to stop, 
this could be detrimental to them. Ms Burgess said that she was also 
speaking on behalf of the nearby hairdressers which also had elderly 
clients. She said that people not being able to pick up and drop 
someone off would cause harm to clients and she also bought her 
washing powder by the tonne and if there was no stopping permitted, 
when it was delivered, this could cause problems.  

 Councillor Morland spoke as the Ward Councillor for the Croft Baker 
Ward. He said that he understood the parking changes, but there 
were four businesses in the specific area, that provided employment 
and were very important to the area. He said that some of the people 
that used the businesses were disabled and if there was no parking 
or loading and unloading, it would create a major problem for people 
and the businesses. He said that it would lead to empty shops as the 
businesses wouldn’t be viable. Councillor Morland stated that the 
businesses provided good services and stopping loading and 
unloading in the area would be detrimental to the Dolly Tub 
Laundrette. He said that the hairdressers also had many elderly 
clients, and this could impact them. He asked that accommodation for 
loading and unloading be considered as otherwise, it could put people 
out of work and lead to the closures of businesses. He said that it 
would be detrimental to the area to have four closed businesses, and 
it wouldn’t send the right message. 



The Portfolio Holder stated that it was not his intention or the 
Council’s intention to see businesses closing down. He asked Mr 
Snell for an update on the planned parking change.  

Mr Snell responded that the Traffic Regulation Order had been sealed 
and made. He said that anyone could seek a legal challenge to the 
Traffic Regulation Order if they believed it had not been carried out 
lawfully. Mr Snell said that there was also the option for a new 
scheme to be introduced, but the current scheme couldn’t be 
amended as the Order was sealed.  

The Portfolio Holder asked if he could amend the Order if new 
evidence came to light.  

Ms Richardson-Smith said that there was the possibility of a new 
scheme, but the current scheme could not be amended. Ms 
Richardson Smith said that it was a shame that the petition was not 
submitted prior to the Order being determined.  

The Portfolio Holder stated that there hadn’t been many objections 
when the scheme was originally considered. The Portfolio Holder 
stated that he would consult with officers about the scheme and look 
at a way to address the issues raised. The Portfolio Holder reiterated 
that he didn’t want any businesses to close. The Portfolio Holder 
informed the lead petitioner that they would be kept updated. 

  RESOLVED –  
 

1. That the petition be received. 
 

2. That the Portfolio Holder consult with officers on the various 
options in which to address the issues raised. 

 
 
PH.HIT.24 25-06 GRIMSBY TOWN CENTRE - VARIOUS STREETS - 

REVIEW OF EXISTING PARKING & LOADING 
PROVISIONS    

 The Portfolio Holder considered a report that proposed to amend the 
restrictions to vehicular access on George Street and waiting, stopping, 
loading and parking restrictions on George Street, New Street, Victoria 
Street West and Victoria Street South in accordance with the plans in 
Appendix 1, 2 and 3. 

 
  RESOLVED – 
 

1. That the making of Traffic Regulation Orders to amend the restrictions 
to vehicular access on George Street and waiting, stopping, loading 



and parking restrictions on George Street, New Street, Victoria Street 
West and Victoria Street South in accordance with the plans in 
Appendix 1, 2 and 3 be approved. 
 

2. That in the event there were unresolved material objections to the 
Order, these be referred back to the Portfolio Holder for Housing, 
Infrastructure and Transport for determination and a decision as to 
whether or not the Order be confirmed and executed. 

 
 
PH.HIT.25 TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER 25-19 MARKET 

STREET CLEETHORPES – VARIOUS RESTRICTIONS   

 The Portfolio Holder considered a report that proposed to introduce new 
Traffic Regulation Orders for various parking, loading and movement 
restrictions to support the pedestrianization of Cleethorpes Market Place, 
enhancing safety, accessibility, and community use of the area.  

 
  RESOLVED –  

 
1. That the making of the required Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs) 

the effect of which will be to introduce the restrictions, as shown 
indicatively on the plans at Appendix 1-4 be approved. 
 

2. That in the event there were unresolved material objections to the 
Orders, these be referred back to the Portfolio Holder for Housing, 
Infrastructure and Transport for determination and a decision as to 
whether or not the Order be confirmed and executed. 

 
 

There being no further business, the Portfolio Holder closed the meeting at 
2.22pm.  



 

 
 

 
SPECIAL PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR HOUSING, INFRASTRUCTURE 

AND TRANSPORT  
 

14th November 2025 at 10.00am 
 
Present 
 
Councillor S Swinburn (in the Chair) 
 
Officers in Attendance: 
 

• Eve Richardson-Smith (Head of Law and Governance) 
• Sophie Pickerden (Committee Support Officer) 
• Jonathan Ford (Senior Transport Officer) 
• Lani Lamming (Enhanced Bus Quality Partnership Co-Ordinator)  

 
Others in Attendance: 
 

• Councillor Beasant (East Marsh Ward Councillor) 
 
There were fifteen members of the public and no members of the press in attendance at 
the meeting.  
 

PH.HIT.26 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

There were no apologies for absence for this meeting. 
 

PH.HIT.27 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

There were no declarations of interest from the Portfolio Holder in respect 
of any items on the agenda for this meeting. 

 
 

 



PH.HIT.29 25-21 CLEETHORPE ROAD – BUS SERVICE 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN - DELIVERY OF BUS LANE, 
INCLUDING ADDITIONAL LOADING AND DISABLED 
PROVISIONS 

   The Portfolio Holder considered a report that sought approval for the 
making of the necessary Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs) to 
introduce a bus lane on the eastbound carriageway of Cleethorpe 
Road, Grimsby. The Portfolio Holder stated that several meetings had 
taken place with the Ward Councillors of the East Marsh Ward 
regarding the proposed scheme.  

Mr Clarke spoke on behalf of the businesses in the area. He asked 
whether the Council thought the scheme to introduce a bus lane was 
a good idea as it would take away parking in the area which was what 
local businesses needed. He stated that the proposed scheme would 
have a detrimental effect on local businesses and would lead to 
businesses closing. He said that the traffic flowed well on Cleethorpe 
Road and that the traffic from the flyover to the Humber Street traffic 
lights flowed perfectly, and the issue was the bottleneck at Park 
Street. Mr Clarke said that expecting customers to walk from Orwell 
Street car park to his business was not reasonable particularly if they 
were carrying pictures and if it was raining.  

 Mr Wilkinson spoke on behalf of the businesses in the area. He said 
that there was no rear access to his premise, and it could only be 
accessed from the front. Mr Wilkinson said that the survey that had 
taken place was undertaken on the coldest Saturday in February 
when the area was quieter. He asked why the survey was done in 
February as that was not a proper assessment of the area. Mr 
Wilkinson said that he wanted to stay in the area but was concerned 
about the proposed scheme as some elderly customers wouldn’t be 
able to access the businesses in the area as they would have to walk 
a lot further. He said that the current system was flexible, and the 
traffic flowed, but the proposed scheme would push the traffic to the 
flyover. Mr Wilkinson stated that the proposed scheme would kill the 
area. He said that he had, had to tell his staff that if the proposed 
scheme was to go ahead, he might have to sell up. Mr Wilkinson said 
that he would like more information provided about the scheme as 
some businesses had not been informed at all, including the 
businesses on Orwell Street.  

 The Portfolio Holder was concerned about the comments regarding 
the businesses not being informed about the scheme. Ms Lamming 
responded that officers had hand delivered letters in February to the 
businesses that were open and for any businesses that were not 
open, a letter was posted in their letterbox. Ms Lamming stated that a 
further letter was sent to all the businesses on Cleethorpe Road in 



November. The Portfolio Holder asked whether officers had carried 
out the assessment. Ms Lamming responded that the assessment 
was undertaken by an enumerator in January on the weekday and 
weekend. The Portfolio Holder asked whether residents had been 
informed about the scheme. Ms Lamming explained that they hadn’t 
as businesses were identified as the primary stakeholder for the 
project and residents would have the opportunity to comments 
through the ‘Traffic Regulation Order’ formal consultation.  

 Councillor Beasant spoke as the Ward Councillor for the East Marsh 
Ward. He said that he fully supported the businesses in the area and 
had done throughout all of the meetings he had, had about the 
scheme. He confirmed all Ward Councillors were against the scheme 
and said that there should have been better consultation undertaken. 
Councillor Beasant said that Cleethorpe Road was busy in the 
summer and the bottleneck in Park Street did need sorting out. 
Councillor Beasant said that he was also concerned for the copy 
centre as it relied on very quick trade, and for people to be in and out. 
He stated that he had concerns that the area was going to lose good 
businesses that had been there a very long time.  He asked the 
Portfolio Holder to either reject the scheme or defer it for proper 
consultation. He stated that some businesses had not received the 
letter sent this month.  

 Councillor Beasant stated that businesses might be able to come up 
with a scheme that was acceptable.  

 The Portfolio Holder was concerned that some businesses had not 
been consulted. was concerned that residents had not been 
consulted and that should have been done as it would affect them. 
The Portfolio Holder explained he was going to defer the proposed 
Traffic Regulation Order in order to allow for further consultation to 
take place. The Portfolio Holder said that the consultation should take 
place by way of public engagement, maybe a public meeting.  

  RESOLVED – That the proposed Traffic Regulation Orders be deferred to 
allow for further public engagement to take place with residents and 
business owners. 

 
PH.HIT.28 THE BOROUGH OF NORTH EAST LINCOLNSHIRE 

COUNCIL (OFF STREET PARKING PLACES) ORDER 
2022 (AMENDMENT NO.12 2025) – INTRODUCTION OF 
TWO HOURS FREE PARKING 

  The Portfolio Holder received a report seeking approval for an 
amendment to the North East Lincolnshire Borough Council Off Street 
Parking Places Order 2022, to remove the parking charges for up to 
two hours and introduce free parking for the same period at Orwell 



Street East and West car parks. The Portfolio Holder stated that he 
was going to defer the proposed amendment to the North East 
Lincolnshire Borough Council Off Street Parking Places Order 2022 in 
order to allow for the determination on the Traffic Regulation Orders 
on Cleethorpe Road. 

   RESOLVED – That the proposed amendment to the North East 
Lincolnshire Borough Council Off Street Parking Places Order 2022 
be deferred to allow for determination on the Traffic Regulation 
Orders on Cleethorpe Road. 

 
 

 
 

There being no further business, the Portfolio Holder closed the meeting at 
10.20am.  


	4. Special PfH HIT Minutes 21st October 2025
	PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR HOUSING, INFRASTRUCTURE AND TRANSPORT
	22nd October 2025 at 2.00pm
	Present
	Officers in Attendance:
	PH.HIT.20 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
	PH.HIT.21 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

	5. Special PfH HIT Minutes 14th November 2025
	SPECIAL PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR HOUSING, INFRASTRUCTURE AND TRANSPORT
	14th November 2025 at 10.00am
	Present
	Officers in Attendance:
	PH.HIT.26 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
	PH.HIT.27 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST


